
 
 

HEARING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

Wednesday, 1 March 2017 10.00 am Committee Room 4, City Hall 

 
Membership: 
 

 
Councillors Geoff Ellis, Ronald Hills and Loraine Woolley 
 

Independent Person(s): 
 

Chris Elkington 
 

Officers attending: 
 

Carolyn Wheater (Monitoring Officer/Investigating Officer) 
Graham Watts (Principal Democratic Officer) to advise the  
Sub-Committee 
 

A G E N D A 

SECTION A Page(s)  

1.  Procedure for the Hearing Sub-Committee  
 

3 - 4 

2.  To consider the Monitoring Officer's investigation report  
 
Reason for Hearing: 
Please note that the Hearing will be considering Councillor Lee’s 
complaint made against Councillor Strengiel regarding his conduct at the 
meeting of the Community Leadership Scrutiny Committee on 
22nd November 2016, together with Councillor Strengiel’s subsequent 
complaint made against Councillor Lee regarding her conduct at the 
same meeting. 
 

5 - 60 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 
HEARING SUB-COMMITTEE 

OUTINE PROCEDURE FOR HEARINGS PANEL (CONTESTED) 
 

1 Preliminary procedural Issues 
 
a. Introductions 
b. Declarations of interests 
c. To consider any requests for the exclusion of the Press and 

Public 
 

2 Monitoring Officer (or his/her representative) to present summary of 
the case and refer to outcome of any pre-hearing process. 
 

3 Investigating Officer to present the report and call such witnesses 
(including the complainants) as he/she considers necessary, and 
make representations to substantiate his/her conclusions within the 
report. 

 
4 The Sub-Committee to raise any issues or clarify any matters with 

the Investigating Officer’s report and to question and clarify matters 
with any of the witnesses called. 

 
5 The member to raise any issues or clarify any matters with the 

Investigating Officer’s report and to question and clarify matters with 
any of the witnesses called. 

 
6 The member who is the subject of the complaint responds to the 

investigation report, makes representations and calls such 
witnesses as he/she considers necessary. (In view of this case 
consisting of two complaints, please note that both members will be 
entitled to respond at this stage of the Hearing).  

 
7 The Investigating Officer to raise any issues, question or clarify any 

matters with the members and any witnesses called. 
 

8 The Sub-Committee to raise any issues, question or clarify any 
matters with the members and any witnesses called. 

 
9 Views of the Independent Person sought. 

 
10 The Sub-Committee then retires along with the Monitoring Officer to 

determine whether there has been a breach of the code of conduct. 
 

11 The Sub-Committee will either return to the Hearing to report the 
decision or (in more complex cases) the decision will be reported 
back by the Principal Democratic Officer. 

 
Action to be taken 
 

12 Monitoring Officer (or his/her representative) to outline possible 
sanctions 

13 Member to respond with any mitigation 
14 Views of Independent Person sought 
15 Sanction (if any) given 

Agenda Item 1



This page is intentionally left blank



Carolyn Wheater – Monitoring Officer 
Investigation Report  
 

 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Case reference: kl/es 
 
Report of an investigation under Section 28 (2) of the Localism Act 2011 by 
Carolyn Wheater, the Monitoring Officer for the City of Lincoln Council, into 
allegations against Councillor Eddie Strengiel of the same Council 
 
 
January 2017 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Agenda Item 2



Carolyn Wheater – Monitoring Officer 
Investigation Report  
 

 2 

 
 
 
 
Contents                                                                                         Page 
 
 
 

1. Executive Summary  3 
 
2. Councillor Strengiel’s official details  5 
 
3. Relevant legislation and protocols  6 
 
4. The evidence and facts  6 
 
5. Reasoning as to whether there have been failures                19 

To comply with the Code of Conduct 
 
6. Findings and mitigation                22 

 
 
 
 
 
Appendices 
 

1. Email from Cllr Lee dated the 28th November 2016  
 

2. Email from Cllr Lee dated the 29th November 2016 
 
3. Email from Cllr Burke dated the 29th November 2016 

 
4. Email from Cllr Bushell dated the 3rd December 2016 

 
5. Email from Cllr Strengiel to Ben Culling with apology dated 23rd 

November 2016 
 

6. Notes taken by Simon Colburn of the meeting dated the 23rd November 
2016 

 
7. Minutes of the meeting of the Community Leadership Scrutiny 

Committee of the 22nd November 2016  
 

8. Member Code of Conduct 
 



Carolyn Wheater – Monitoring Officer 
Investigation Report  
 

 3 

 
 

1. Executive Summary 
 

1.1 Councillor Eddie Strengiel is a member of the City of Lincoln Council 
Cllr Lee is the chair of the Community Leadership Scrutiny Committee 
(CLSC) and Cllr Strengiel is a member of the committee. 

 
1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.6 
 
 
 

On the 28th November 2016 I received a telephone call from Cllr 
Karen Lee stating that she wished to make a complaint under the 
member code of conduct against Cllr Strengiel with regards his 
behaviour at the CLSC on the 22nd November 2016. 
As per the protocol for code of conduct complaints, I informed Cllr Lee 
that any such complaint needs to be in writing. In that conversation 
Cllr Lee told me that other members at the committee also had 
concerns about Cllr Strengiel’s behaviour, again I informed Cllr Lee 
that if that was the case they would also have to contact me directly 
outlining their concerns. This conversation was followed up by an 
email from Cllr Lee (appendix 1) on the same date asking that I 
investigate Cllr Strengiel for breach of the code of conduct. I 
responded to that email, requesting actual details and evidence of the 
alleged breach. 
 
On the 29th November 2017, I received a further email from Cllr Lee 
(appendix 2) setting out why she considered that Cllr Strengiel had 
breached the member code of conduct. Cllr Lee in that email, stated 
that Cllr Strengiel’s manner towards her was ‘rude, bullying and 
aggressive’. She stated that at the meeting Cllr Strengiel had accused 
her of poor chairing, and that his behaviour was ‘not courteous or 
civil’.  
 
The email went on to say that in the meeting Cllr Strengiel made a 
number of comments, which included an invitation to Cllr Bushell to 
‘go outside.’ 
Cllr Lee also states that during the meeting Cllr Strengiel made what 
she considered to be a very political comment, and held a loud 
whispered conversation with Cllr Dyer. 
 
Later on that same day, I received an email from Cllr Chris Burke 
(appendix 3).  
This email was in response to an email sent by Cllr Lee to Cllrs Mair, 
Tweddle, Sue Burke, Chris Burke, Gill Clayton Hewson and Cllr 
Bushell, informing them that she had contacted me and that I had 
advised that if they were concerned about the meeting, they should 
contact me directly. 
 
Cllr Chris Burke’s email was to highlight to me his concerns about the 
meeting and Cllr Strengiel’s determination at the end of the meeting to 
insist Cllr Lee was chairing the meeting unfairly. 
 



Carolyn Wheater – Monitoring Officer 
Investigation Report  
 

 4 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.7 

Cllr Burke states in his email that he found no evidence of the meeting 
being chaired unfairly and that he found Cllr Strengiel’s approach to 
be discourteous and aggressive. The email goes on to say that he and 
Cllr Bushell tried to intervene but that Cllr Strengiel became more 
aggressive offering to see Cllr Bushell ‘outside’  
Cllr Burke went on to say whilst Cllr Strengiel is often robust but 
helpful, that on this occasion he threatened a fellow Cllr, and 
attempted to bully Cllr Lee. 
 
Cllr Bushell emailed me on the 3rd December 2016 (having been on 
holiday the previous week) (Appendix 4) to give his observations on 
the meeting of the 22nd November. He alluded to a tension between 
Cllr Lee and Cllr Strengiel which he considers as now having a 
damaging effect on the committee. 
Cllr Bushell’s email goes on to say that he believes that Cllr Strengiel 
has a problem with apolitical meetings and that he can be very 
politically defensive. 
He made reference to Cllr Strengiel making inaudible comments to 
Cllr Dyer during the meeting. 
At the end of the meeting, Cllr Bushell’s email states that Cllr Strengiel 
declared that he would see Cllr Lee in the Leader’s office with legal, 
he complained that Cllr Lee and he were too political and that he 
became increasingly angry. 
Cllr Bushell’s went on to say in the email that upon asking Cllr Stregiel 
to calm down, Cllr Strengiel offered to ‘take him outside.’ 

  
1.8 Cllr Lee states that she believes that the behaviour of Cllr Strengiel at 

CLSC constituted a breach the Member Code of Conduct. 
 

1.9 Under the requirements of the Localism Act 2011 and the adopted 
Local Assessment Criteria, for member complaints, I met with Chris 
Elkington the Council’s Independent Person and it was agreed that 
the complaint from Cllr Lee did indicate a potential breach of the 
member code of conduct and that local resolution was not suitable. It 
was agreed that I would carry out the investigation.  
 

1.10 As a result of this investigation, I have concluded that Councillor 
Strengiel did breach the Member Code of Conduct in that he failed to 
treat others with respect.  

  
  

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 



Carolyn Wheater – Monitoring Officer 
Investigation Report  
 

 5 

 
 
 

1. Councillor Strengiel’s official details: 
 

1.1 Councillor Strengiel has been on the Council from 1991-1995 and 
1998-2017. 
 

1.2 
 

Councillor Strengiel sits on the following committees: 
 

 Community Leadership Scrutiny Committee 

 Council 

 Ethics & Engagement 

 Planning 

 Select Scrutiny  
 

1.3 Councillor Strengiel gave a written undertaking to observe the Code of 
Conduct in May 2016.   
                  . 

1.4 Councillor Strengiel has attended various training sessions at the 
Council over his years as a councillor and in particular undertook 
training on the Code of Conduct in 2012. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Carolyn Wheater – Monitoring Officer 
Investigation Report  
 

 6 

 
 
 

1. Relevant legislation and protocols 
 

1.1 The Council adopted a code of conduct under the Localism Act 2011 
in 2012 and this was the code of conduct in place at the time of the 
complaint (attached as Appendix 7.) 
 

1.2 Paragraph 3.1 of  the code states; 
 
“when acting in your role as a member of the authority: do treat others 
with respect and not bully any person” 
 

2. Evidence and facts 
 

2.1 On receipt of the written complaints from Cllrs Lee, Bushell and Chris 
Burke, I met with the Independent Person and it was agreed that as 
Monitoring Officer I would investigate the complaint. 
 

2.2 During the investigation I interviewed, with the Independent Person, 
Councillors Lee, Bushell, C Burke, Strengiel and Dyer. I also 
interviewed the Chief Executive, Ben Culling (Democratic Services 
Officer) Simon Colburn (Assistant Director Health and Environmental 
Services) 

 
3. 

 
Background  
 

3.1 Chief Executive (CX) 
 

3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.4 
 
 
 
 

I was on leave the week of the CLSC, and therefore became aware on 
my return on the 28th November that there had been an issue at the 
CLSC held the week before. 
I therefore interviewed the Chief Executive on the 6th December 2016 
as she had made me aware that both Cllr Strengiel and Cllr Lee had 
contacted her the day after the committee. 
 
The CX advised me that Cllr Strengiel telephoned her the morning 
after the committee, informing her that there were issues with the 
previous evening’s committee. Cllr Strengiel informed the CX that he 
was livid about the manner in which the meeting was chaired by Cllr 
Lee in that she brings in people to speak before him, even though he 
had indicated to speak. His view was the meeting was very political 
and named both Cllrs Bushell and Burke being political at the meeting. 
 
Cllr Strengiel told the CX that Cllr Lee cut him off whilst he was trying 
to speak at the meeting. 
He also stated that at the meeting, Cllr Lee made a very political 
comment, stating “we are not really all in this together”. 
 



Carolyn Wheater – Monitoring Officer 
Investigation Report  
 

 7 

3.5 
 
 
 
 
3.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.8 
 
 
 
 
 
3.9 
 
 
 
 
4.0 
 
4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cllr Strengiel went onto to tell the CX that he was however mad with 
himself, as he did get cross, however he considered that the language 
used by Cllr Bushell was in fact language used to goad him. He 
repeated that he was mad with himself for ‘losing it’ in front of officers. 
 
The CX informed me that she suggested to Cllr Strengiel that he 
apologised to the officers (Ben Culling – Democratic Services and 
Simon Colburn – AD Health and Environment), Cllr Strengiel told her 
that he would do this, and would do this in person rather than email. 
Cllr Strengiel told the CX in that conversation that all he wanted was 
fairness in the meetings, but that he considered that Cllr Lee was not 
a good Chair. The CX did ask whether Cllr Strengiel wanted her to do 
anything, Cllr Strengiel told her that he just wanted the CX to be 
aware that he was unhappy. 
  
The CX then advised me that later on that afternoon Cllr Lee went to 
see her unannounced to speak about the committee. The CX told Cllr 
Lee that she had already spoken to Cllr Strengiel earlier on in the day 
about the committee and the fact that he considered that he feels he 
doesn’t get the notice he should, Cllr Lee didn’t react to this. 
During this meeting, Cllr Lee did acknowledge to the CX that she 
understands about reacting to things in a certain way, and gave the 
example of her own reaction to ASB behaviour in the West End. The 
CX suggested to Cllr Lee, that in future that perhaps she could over 
compensate to Cllr Strengiel to readdress the balance of what may 
have been going on at the CLSC. Cllr Lee agreed to do this.  
During the conversation with Cllr Lee, the CX advises that there was 
no mention of what happened at the end of the meeting with Cllr 
Strengiel and Cllr Bushell. 
 
Cllr Lee then informed the CX that for her that was the end of the 
matter. 
The CX then contacted Cllr Strengiel to inform him that Cllr Lee was 
going to draw a line under the whole matter and that in future Cllr Lee 
would make a point to ensure that she was listening to both sides. 
 
CX was keen to point out to me that Cllr Lee was incredibly calm and 
relaxed when she left the meeting with her, she was therefore very 
surprised that after this Cllr Lee made a formal code of conduct 
complaint.  
 
Officers 
 
I then interviewed Ben Culling (Democratic Services Officer) to get his 
view as the officer serving that committee. 
 
By way of background the Committee was considering the review of 
suicide rates in the city. There were four external witnesses due to 
present at the meeting these were  
 



Carolyn Wheater – Monitoring Officer 
Investigation Report  
 

 8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
 
 
4.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.6 
 
 
 
 
 
4.7 
 
 
 
 
4.8 
 
 
 
 
 

 Health Support Manager, Humberside, Lincolnshire and North 
Yorkshire Community Rehabilitation Company 

 Medical Director , Lincolnshire Partnership Foundation Trust 

 Head of Commissioning Mental Health, NHS Southwest 
Clinical Commissioning Group 

 Researcher into Self Harm and Suicide Prevention 
  

Ben told me that at the beginning of the meeting Cllr Lee was very 
clear, that as there were a number of people due to speak that 
members should restrict themselves to questions only, for the external 
witnesses. No one from the committee objected to this.  
Ben went on to say that when Cllr Strengiel spoke, he did go ‘the long 
way round’ to get to what he was saying and that Cllr Lee did interrupt 
him, to ask him the point he was making and what was his question. 
 
Ben advises that Cllr Strengiel did then ask his question, but that he 
was sniggering with Cllr Dyer, Ben thought that this behaviour was 
unprofessional. Ben did say at this point Cllr Strengiel was not rude, 
and that Cllr Lee was being assertive. He describes them as “butting 
heads.” 
 
In relation to whether Ben considered that there was any bias shown 
in favour of Cllr Lee’s own party, Ben told me that he could see no 
evidence of this, however Cllrs Burke and Bushell may have not 
specifically have asked questions. 
 
On then being asked what happened at the end of the meeting. Ben 
stated that at the close of the meeting (when all external 
representatives had left) Cllr Strengiel immediately stood up and said 
something along the lines of “you are outrageous, letting all your 
members speak”. He said this to Cllr Lee who remained relatively 
calm, however Ben told me he was shocked by the outburst. 
 
Ben then went on to say that Cllr Strengiel then accused Cllr Lee of 
bias, as she would not let the Conservatives speak at the meeting. 
From Ben’s recollection, Cllr Bushell then stepped in telling Cllr 
Strengiel that he was out of line. Cllr Lee was still not responding, but 
at this point Cllr Strengiel was shouting. 
 
Both Cllrs Strengiel and Bushell were now standing up towards the 
end of the committee table and were shouting across the table. When 
being asked further to describe what happened, Ben said that in his 
view both Cllrs said things that they should not have said. 
 
Ben went on to say that at the beginning of this episode that Cllr 
Bushell was genuinely trying to defuse the situation. However he 
considers that the words that Cllr Bushell used towards Cllr Strengiel, 
were words which would not do that. Ben went on to say that the 
situation was quite surreal, in that Cllrs Bushell and Strengiel were 



Carolyn Wheater – Monitoring Officer 
Investigation Report  
 

 9 

 
 
 
4.9 
 
 
 
4.10 
 
 
 
4.11 
 
 
4.12 
 
 
 
 
4.13 
 
 
 
 
4.14 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.15 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.16 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

shouting at each other, Cllr Lee was remaining quiet and other Cllrs 
still in the room were holding separate conversations with each other. 
 
Ben advises, that at that point Cllr Lee told Cllr Strengiel that he 
shouldn’t speak like that in front of officers, to which Cllr Strengiel 
responded that the officers were big enough to look after themselves. 
 
Ben told me that, the day after the committee Cllr Lee went into 
democratic services and advised him that she had spoken to the CX 
and that she was going to leave the matter. 
 
Ben also indicated that he was therefore surprised that a complaint 
was subsequently raised. 
 
In summary to this interview I asked Ben whether he considered that 
Cllr Strengiel was antagonised in anyway by the other Cllrs, to which 
Ben replied that he didn’t believe so and that Cllr Strengiel just 
seemed to wind himself up. 
 
Ben advised that he got an email from Cllr Strengiel on the 23rd 
November, in which Cllr Strengiel said he was sorry that Ben had to 
hear the altercation at committee, and that he was sorry if that had 
offended him (Appendix 4.) 
 
The other officer present at the CLSC meeting was Simon Colburn 
(AD – Health and Environment). Simon had actually written a file note 
of what happened at the committee the day after. The file note is 
attached as Appendix 5. 
The note taken by Simon is very comprehensive and clearly sets out 
what seems to been the sequence events at the committee.   
 
As can be seen by the note Cllr Strengiel stated, at the end of the 
meeting, that he would see Cllr Lee with the Leader, that he was not 
happy with the way that the meeting had been chaired and that his 
voice became increasingly elevated.  
He made references to Cllr Lee’s comment that “we are not all in this 
together” and that the external guests were chuckling at this comment. 
Simon stated that Cllr Strengiel made reference to the fact that this 
was not the first time that he had been cut off, or ignored by Cllr Lee 
and that this had also happened at the last meeting. 
 
Simon then goes on to explain what happened at the end of the 
meeting, in which Cllr Lee stated that she would welcome a meeting 
with the Leader, to which Cllr Bushell stated that he would also like to 
be involved in any meeting. Cllr Bushell then said to Cllr Strengiel that 
these meetings were meant to be apolitical, Cllr Strengiel did respond 
to this, meaning that both Cllrs were talking at the same time. The 
note does state that Cllr Strengiel was walking towards the door at this 
time with Cllr Dyer, however Cllr Strengiel was using an increasingly 
raised voice. 



Carolyn Wheater – Monitoring Officer 
Investigation Report  
 

 10 

 
4.17 
 
 
 
 
4.18 
 
 
 
 
4.19 
 
 
 
4.20 
 
 
 
4.21 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.22 
 
 
 
4.23 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.24 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Simon states that Cllr Bushell then said to Cllr Strengiel words along 
the lines of “calm down Eddie you’ll give yourself a heart attack”, Cllr 
Strengiel responded by saying “I’m perfectly fine, thank you, I’m 
strong enough and can prove it to you if you like.” 
 
The note also goes on to say, as an aside, that during the meeting it 
appeared that Cllrs Strengiel and Dyer were whispering  to each other 
whilst the first speaker was talking and appeared to laugh at one 
point.  
 
I interviewed Simon to see whether he had anything further to add to 
the note he made, and to ask some specific questions arising from the 
note. 
 
Firstly I asked why Simon felt he should write the note the day after 
the committee, to which he said that he knew that him and Ben would 
be speaking to me on this matter.  
 
References had been made by Cllr Strengiel to previous examples of 
Cllr Lee’s behaviour. As Simon had been on this previous committee, I 
asked what was meant by this. Simon stated that at the last meeting 
of the CLSC, this took the form of two workshops, Simon was on the 
same table as Cllr Lee with a speaker Cllr Bushell was on the other 
table. Cllr Strengiel made a comment, to which Cllr Lee asked that he 
wait until the previous speaker had finished, Simon said that Cllr 
Strengiel was snappy with her. Simon says that there clearly is a 
tension between the two Cllrs and that in front of external speakers 
this was unprofessional, he considered that Cllr Strengiel was snappy 
and curt and that the whole thing could have been dealt with in a 
better way. 
 
With regards the meeting on the 22nd November, Simon said he 
thought that Cllr Lee chaired the meeting quite well and it was clear 
that she asked members to limit themselves to questions only.  
 
When Cllr Strengiel spoke after the first external speaker has spoken, 
Simon stated that it got quite political. Cllr Strengiel’s comment was 
around prisons being too soft, Simon said that Cllr Lee did then cut 
him off, but that in doing so she was firm but calm. Simon then said at 
that point Cllr Strengiel was chuckling and whispering to Cllr Dyer, this 
was whilst an external speaker was taking which Simon considered to 
be most unprofessional. 
 
On asking Simon to elaborate on what happened at the end of the 
meeting, he told me that he took the external speakers out and. At the 
close of the meeting, Cllr Strengiel did say to Cllrs Lee and Bushell 
that he would see them with the Leader. He repeated that Cllr 
Strengiel wasn’t shouting to begin with, but that he was clearly wound 
up. Simon says he would have described him as calm but angry, 



Carolyn Wheater – Monitoring Officer 
Investigation Report  
 

 11 

 
 
4.25 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.26 
 
 
 
 
4.27 
 
 
 
 

however he was clearly annoyed. 
 
Simon went on the say that when Cllr Bushell intervened, he was 
trying to calm him down, though Simon states he may in fact have 
wound him up, at that point Cllr Strengiel became very loud and was 
shouting.  
Simon then went on to say that he didn’t consider Cllr Strengiel’s 
behaviour to be acceptable and that it wasn’t acceptable for two 
people to speak to each other like that. 
 
I then asked whether Simon has received an apology from Cllr 
Strengiel to which he stated that he was aware that Cllr Strengiel had 
tried to contact him by phone but that he was out of the office (Cllr 
Strengiel has since apologised to Simon in person) 
 
In summary, Simon said that as chair of CLSC he considers that Cllr 
Lee has matured, that she didn’t rise to comments and was doing a 
good job. 
He concluded that the only ‘red mark’ against Cllr Lee was the 
comment she made during the meeting of “it doesn’t feel like we are 
all in it together does it?  
 

5. Interview with Cllr Lee 
 

5.1 At the beginning of the interview with Cllr Lee I asked her which 
elements of the code of conduct she considered had been breached 
by Cllr Strengiel. Cllr Lee advised that whilst she wasn’t familiar with 
the whole of the code, she believed that it makes reference to treating 
everyone with respect and this applied to everyone. 

  
5.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.3 
 
 
 
 
 
5.4 
 
 
 
 

I then asked Cllr Lee for her to elaborate on why she considers that 
there had been a breach. Cllr Lee indicated that the whole incident 
actually started at the previous meeting of the CLSC. At that meeting 
which took the form of workshops, Cllr Mair was speaking and Cllr 
Strengiel chipped in, Cllr Lee says she asked Cllr Strengiel to wait. 
She said that Cllr Strengiel seemed to take umbrage at this and 
responded along the lines of “I might as well not be here” and that this 
comment was made in front of external witnesses. 
 
In describing how Cllr Lee believes she chairs the meetings of the 
CLSC, she says that she tries to be fair. However Cllr Strengiel is 
always challenging, and gives the example of his insistence of calling 
her Chairman when she is clear that she wants to be referred to as 
Chair. 
 
Cllr Lee states that at the beginning of the meeting, as there were four 
external scrutiny witnesses, she requested that members just limit 
themselves to asking questions, rather than comments and that any 
comments would be taken at the end of the meeting. Cllr Lee held that 
she was clear that this applied to everyone. 



Carolyn Wheater – Monitoring Officer 
Investigation Report  
 

 12 

 
5.5 
 
 
 
 
5.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.7 
 
 
 
 
 
5.8 
 
 
 
 
 
5.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Half way through the meeting, Cllr Lee said that Cllr Strengiel made a 
random comment, she couldn’t recall what the comment was about, 
however Cllr Lee did say she intervened and asked Cllr Strengiel to 
ask a question, Cllr Lee admits she did cut Cllr Strengiel short. 
 
Cllr Lee went on to say that during the meeting, both Cllr Strengiel and 
Cllr Dyer were very rude in that they were whispering to each other, 
she says she didn’t want to address this as she considers that if she 
did make a comment on this, it would have inflamed the situation. 
Cllr Lee was clear in her mind that at the meeting, she didn’t get 
cross, she wasn’t stroppy with Cllr Strengiel nor was she bossy. She 
went on to say, if anything, she perhaps didn’t chair the meeting firmly 
enough. She repeated that Cllr Dyer and Cllr Strengiel were however 
whispering to each other and she considered this to be unprofessional 
in front of external representatives. 
 
On being specifically asked how Cllr Strengiel was rude and 
aggressive as per the language in Cllr Lee’s complaint email, she 
responded that this was linked to the rambling statement he made at 
the committee, Cllr Lee said that this was rude and aggressive, 
though clarified that this was not in fact bullying. 
 
On querying whether Cllr Lee considered that as Chair of the meeting, 
there was  any aspect of how she did this, which may have been an 
issue, Cllr Lee denied this was the case, that she chaired the meeting 
fairly, but that the only mark against her was her comment, “we are 
not all in this together.” 
 
On describing what happened at the end of the meeting, Cllr Lee said 
that she was frightened as Cllr Strengiel “went for it”, Cllr Lee said that 
the new Cllrs on that committee were horrified by this. 
Cllr Lee went on to describe Cllr Strengiel’s tone as rude, bullying and 
aggressive. She was mortified by this behaviour and didn’t respond, 
that she felt embarrassed and intimidated by Cllr Strengiel’s 
behaviour. 
 
Cllr Strengiel told Cllr Lee that he intended to speak to the Monitoring 
Officer as he considered that Cllr Lee as chair of the committee was 
biased and political. 
Cllr Lee then says that at this point Cllr Bushell intervened, Cllr 
Strengiel was shouting again making accusations of bias and that at 
the committee he wasn’t given the opportunity to speak, Cllr Lee says 
that Cllr Strengiel’s colour was rising and he said to Cllr Bushell that 
they “would go outside to settle it.” 
Cllr Lee stated that this was not the first time that Cllr Strengiel had 
‘invited someone outside,’ 
 
 
 



Carolyn Wheater – Monitoring Officer 
Investigation Report  
 

 13 

5.11 
 
 
 
 
  
 
5.12 
 
 
 
 

Cllr Lee held that Cllr Bushell was trying to calm things down, he told 
Cllr Strengiel that if he wasn’t careful he would have a heart attack. 
Cllr Lee stated that she didn’t want to get involved and therefore didn’t 
respond as she thought that this would inflame the situation. Cllr Lee 
stated that Cllr Bushell was quite defensive of her being bullied and 
was therefore responding on her behalf. 
 
In summary, Cllr Lee stated that it was totally unacceptable for a Cllr 
to say “go outside” to sort things out. She held that Cllr Strengiel could 
have addressed this in a much more reasonable way by asking to 
have a private word, however he choose not to do it that way and was 
rude, bullying and aggressive . 
 

5.13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.0 

On asking what happened the day after the meeting, Cllr Lee told me 
that she did go in and see the CX, though she didn’t go into City Hall 
specially for this, she also said she did think that Cllr Strengiel would 
have contacted the CX on the matter.  
Cllr Lee agreed that her initial reaction was not to take the matter 
further, however that she changed her mind as the new members on 
the committee were horrified by the behaviour. Cllr Lee said that she 
believes that she has a duty to junior members, but that she also 
agreed with them that Cllr Strengiel’s behaviour should not be 
allowed. 
 
Interview with Cllr Strengiel 

 
6.1 
 
 
 
6.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.4 
 
 
 

 
Before the interview commenced with Cllr Stregiel, he asked me to 
clarify what the terms of reference were for the CLSC and to clarify 
that the meetings should not be political. 
 
On being asked to describe what happened at the meeting on the 22nd 
November, Cllr Strengiel also referred to the meeting before which 
was a workshop session. Cllr Strengiel said that Cllr Lee was in his 
group, that he indicated to speak, Cllr Lee acknowledged this, but in 
fact went round the table and let others speak before him, when she 
did get to him, he said he made a sarcastic comment along the lines 
of “oh you want me to speak now!” 
 
On the night of the actual meeting, Cllr Strengiel said that he made a 
comment about suicide rates in prison, Cllr Strengiel described 
himself as not “wishy washy’” and was making a point that 200 years 
ago prisoners were chained to the walls. He said however that he 
didn’t get to his question to the external witness as Cllr Lee shouted 
him down, he felt that she was putting him in his place and that this 
was embarrassing for him in front on the external witnesses.  
 
Cllr Strengiel went on to say that just before the end of the committee, 
Cllr Bushell made a comment about the health service, however he 
did not ask a question and Cllr Lee did not interrupt him. Cllr Burke 
then did the same and didn’t ask his question first, however again he 



Carolyn Wheater – Monitoring Officer 
Investigation Report  
 

 14 

 
 
6.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.6 
 
 

wasn’t interrupted by Cllr Lee. 
 
Cllr Strengiel acknowledged that at this point he could feel his blood 
pressure rising, and that at the end of the meeting Cllr Lee made a 
political quote saying “we are not all in this together”, Cllr Strengiel 
considered that this political quote was aimed at his party, Cllr 
Strengiel stated that he took this personally, and that the reaction to 
the comment was that all the external people laughed. 
 
I asked Cllr Strengiel whether during the meeting he was whispering 
and laughing with Cllr Dyer, Cllr Strengiel advised that he can 
remember whispering but not laughing. 

  
6.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.10 
 
 
 
 
6.11 
 
 
 

At the close of the meeting Cllr Stengiel told me that he informed Cllr 
Lee that she needed some lessons in chairing a meeting, Cllr Lee 
didn’t respond to this, however Cllr Bushell did respond. Cllr Strengiel 
told them that the committee was very political and that it should be 
chaired in the way that Performance Scrutiny was chaired in that that 
Chair was not afraid to ‘have a go’ at this own side and that he 
allowed all comments relevant to scrutiny . 
 
Cllr Strengiel describes his behaviour as calm, and that he wasn’t 
shouting. He went on to say that Cllr Bushell shouted to him “look at 
your face, you are going to have a heart attack”. Cllr Strengiel told me 
that his colour does rise, however that despite what Cllr Bushell said 
he was not likely to have a heart attack, however he described Cllr 
Bushell’s comments to him as “like a red rag to a bull”. Cllr Strengiel 
went on the say that he told Cllr Bushell that if he continued to have a 
go at him that they should ‘take this outside the room’. On asked what 
he meant by this, Cllr Strengiel told me that he didn’t mean anything 
by it, that this wasn’t a threat.  
 
Cllr Strengiel went on to say that his only regret was saying it all in 
front of officers, and that he had apologised to Ben and tried to 
apologise to Simon. 
He told me that he does get frustrated and repeated the phrase that 
“he loses his rag”, however he wished me to understand the 
circumstances that led him to feeling that way, and this was because 
he considers that the meeting was not chaired in a non-political 
manner. 
 
On being asked to describe Cllr Bushell’s behaviour, Cllr Strengiel 
said that Cllr Bushell may have thought that he as trying to calm 
everyone down, but that he would describe his behaviour as passive 
aggressive. 
 
In summary Cllr Strengiel repeated that he was sorry that he was like 
this in front of of officers, that he in fact sees that the CLSC committee 
has undertaken a lot of positive meetings with positive outcomes and 
gave the scrutiny of loan sharks as an example.; However he did 



Carolyn Wheater – Monitoring Officer 
Investigation Report  
 

 15 

 
 
 
 
 
6.12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.0 
 
7.1 
 
 
 
 
 
7.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.3 
 
 
 
 
 
7.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

repeat that the only thing he has against Cllr Lee is the way she chairs 
the meeting. Whilst Cllr Dyer and he may not have been laughing 
during the meeting they may have looked at each other and raised 
their eyebrows at each other during the political comments. 
 
Cllr Strengiel said he was not proud of his behaviour and that maybe 
he did overreact and he should have waited until the officers had left 
the room.  
He repeated however that he thought that the meeting had been 
chaired in an inappropriate way, he should have been allowed to 
speak, that Cllr Lee should not have shouted at him and she should 
not have made the political comment about all being in it together. 
 
Cllr Strengiel ended the interview by saying that he had no intention of 
being offensive, it was just the way the circumstances took him. 
 
Interview with Cllr Bushell 
 
Cllr Bushell started the interview by clarifying that whilst his original 
email referred to potentially making things up with Cllr Strengiel, he 
now considers due to the severity of the incident and the amount of 
time that has elapsed since the incident with no apology being 
forthcoming, he would not accept an apology. 
 
Cllr Bushell refers in his email to a tension between Cllrs Lee and Cllr 
Bushell and I asked to elaborate on that. Cllr Bushell said that the 
tension has been evident for a while and that Cllr Lee feels quite 
intimidated by it. Cllr Bushell says it is clear that Cllr Strengiel doesn’t 
like Cllr Lee, that whilst he is entitled to those feelings he should not 
make them obvious. He says that Cllr Strengiel does seen to take 
offence at everything that Cllr Lee says. 
 
Cllr Bushell states that this tension between the two Cllrs has been 
building up, however that you do get used to Cllr Strengiel being the 
first to comment at the meeting and to make embarrassing, ill-
informed comments. 
 
Cllr Bushell said that Cllr Strengiel spoke first at the meeting and 
made a highly embarrassing comment after the witness from the 
probation service had spoken. The witness had spoken about the 
vulnerability of people after they had left prison as they often found 
themselves left with no support. The external witness went on to say 
that whilst they didn’t want to make a political statement, that from 
April 2017 their funding would be cut. Cllr Strengiel’s comment to him 
was that 200 years ago we shackled prisoners to cell walls and 
inferred that we were being too soft with prisoners. Cllr Bushell said 
he was cringing at that statement and hoped that the external 
representative didn’t think that all Cllrs were all of that opinion. 
 
 



Carolyn Wheater – Monitoring Officer 
Investigation Report  
 

 16 

7.5 
 
 
 
7.6 
 
 
 
 
7.7 
 
 
 
 
 
7.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.10 
 
 
 
7.11 
 
 
 
 
 
7.12 
 
 
 
 

Cllr Bushell considered that Cllr Strengiel was in a defensive mode 
and was clearly making the point that he had taken exception to the 
funding comment. 
 
When Cllr Strengiel was speaking, Cllr Bushell acknowledged that Cllr 
Lee cut him off asking ‘was there a question’, he says she was 
persistent and assertive in doing this, but she was not aggressive. Cllr 
Bushell said Cllr Strengiel was clearly unhappy at this point. 
 
On specifically being asked whether there was any unfairness in the 
chairing of the meeting, Cllr Bushell responded that Cllr Strengiel had 
clearly been told to ask a question and to not make a prolonged 
statement. He went on to say that the Chair does have to control the 
meeting, but that Cllr Strengiel is a law unto himself. 
 
Cllr Bushell stated that he does have some sympathy for Cllr Lee in 
these meetings, as it was like they were walking on egg shells with 
Cllr Strengiel being on the committee, Cllr Bushell said that he didn’t 
see how this could be resolved amicably. 
Cllr Bushell described Cllr Lee’s manner at that point in the meeting 
as being assertive, and that she wasn’t rude. 
Cllr Bushell said after that incident, Cllr Strengiel didn’t say anything 
though he did mutter to Cllr Dyer and was sniggering whilst the 
external witnesses were at the meeting. 
 
I then asked Cllr Bushell about the assertion that the meeting was 
becoming a political meeting, Cllr Bushell responded that pretty much 
everything that the committee considers has a potential solution which 
is political whichever party is in control. 
He said the challenge for the committee is how they work with 
external agencies to mitigate those political issues without becoming 
partisan. Cllr Bushell went on to say that he considers that Cllr 
Strengiel comes to those meetings in a defensive mode that he is on 
the attack and that that attack is from a political angle. 
 
Cllr Bushell says he acknowledges that Cllr Lee can also be forthright 
and passionate in her political views at Full Council, however she 
does not express these at the scrutiny meetings. 
 
I asked Cllr Bushell on the point made by Cllr Strengiel that there was 
an unfairness  as Cllr Bushell was allowed to comment and not ask a 
question, Cllr Bushell acknowledged that this was the case however 
that his mitigation was that he was making a factual point, based on 
his professional background. 
 
On asking what happened after the meeting closed, Cllr Bushell said 
that Cllr Strengiel got up out of his chair, pointed to Cllr Lee and said 
quite loudly for all the committee to hear, I will see you in the Leader’s 
office with legal. Cllr Lee asked what he meant by this and responded 
by saying she was too political. Cllr Bushell said Cllr Strengiel 



Carolyn Wheater – Monitoring Officer 
Investigation Report  
 

 17 

 
 
 
 
7.13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.14 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.15 
 
 
 
 
 
7.16 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.17 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.0 
 
8.1 
 
 
 
 

appeared quite angry, that he indicated as vice chair that he would 
like to be involved in any such meeting, Cllr Strengiel then accused 
him of being too political as well. 
 
Cllr Bushell then said that he disputed this and asked Cllr Strengiel to 
sit down and talk about it, Cllr Bushell says that his behaviour was 
calm, however Cllr Strengiel refused to sit down and became 
increasingly agitated and vocal. Cllr Bushell said he was very 
surprised by the reaction displayed by Cllr Strengiel and felt that he 
was clearly looking to escalate the argument. 
 
Cllr Bushell said that he was used to dealing with emotional situations 
because of his job, however whatever he said to Cllr Strengiel 
seemed to ratchet things up, that Cllr Strengiel was clearly frustrated 
and wanted someone to vent this on. Cllr Bushell says that he did say 
to Cllr Strengiel ‘to calm down you will have a heart attack’, and that if 
he continued in that manner he would hurt himself. Cllr Bushell said 
that he was genuinely concerned for Cllr Strengiel’s wellbeing as he 
appeared to be getting increasingly angry and out of control. Cllr 
Bushell also told Cllr Strengiel that he was embarrassing himself in 
front of his peers. 
 
Cllr Bushell then stated that Cllr Strengiel’s response to this was to 
say “come on outside”, when I asked what he thought Cllr Strengiel 
meant by this, he said he took this to mean “fisticuffs”. Cllr Bushell 
went on to say that there was no doubt what Cllr Strengiel meant and 
he was amazed that he has said that. 
 
I asked Cllr Bushell whether the language he used may have in fact 
goaded Cllr Strengiel. Cllr Bushell questioned why he would do this, 
that he was genuinely concerned about his wellbeing. He said that Cllr 
Strengiel could have sat down like a reasonable human being  and 
discussed this issue, instead he choose to bully intimidate and 
threaten physical violence.  
 
In summary Cllr Bushell describes his own behaviour as calm 
throughout the whole incident and his intention was to calm Cllr 
Strengiel down. 
He stated that he stands by his comments that Cllr Strengiel’s 
behaviour was aggressive, threatening and bullying and that he was 
trying to intimidate others. 
 
 
Interview with Cllr Chris Burke 
 
On briefly asking Cllr Burke’s view on what happened during the 
meeting, Cllr Burke stated that there was a tension throughout the 
meeting, he thought that Cllr Strengiel may have come to the meeting 
in an irritable mood.  
 



Carolyn Wheater – Monitoring Officer 
Investigation Report  
 

 18 

 
 
 
 
8.2 
 
 
 
 
8.3 
 
 
 
8.4 
 
 
 
 
 
8.5  
 
 
 
 
9.0  
 
9.1 
 
 
 
9.2 
 
 
 
 
 
9.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.4 
 
 
9.5 
 
 
 

Cllr Burke said he thought that Cllr Lee chaired the meeting fairly, and 
that if there had been an allegation that the meeting was chaired 
unfairly he would say there was no merit in that allegation. 
 
At the end of the meeting, Cllr Burke said that Cllr Strengiel 
“exploded”, that he berated Cllr Lee for unfair treatment. Cllr Burke 
said that he tried to intervene and say he was out of order but Cllr 
Strengiel said he didn’t want to hear from him. 
 
Cllr Burke then said Cllr Bushell got involved, and that Cllr Strengiel 
offered to take Cllr Bushell outside, Cllr Burke said he took this to 
mean a threat. 
 
Cllr Burke described Cllr Strengiel’s behaviour as angry, that he 
wasn’t thinking straight. He says Cllr Strengiel was waving his arms 
about, and that his language was loud and aggressive. Cllr Burke said 
that Cllr Strengiel was very much on the attack and the threat of 
violence really bothered him. 
 
I asked Cllr Burke whether he thought the meeting was political, he 
stated that the meetings are not normally political but the very nature 
of that scrutiny committee is that there is an argument that these are 
political subjects. 
 
Interview with Cllr Dyer 
 
On asking Cllr Dyer his views on what happened at the committee, he 
stated that it is a controversial committee, and that Cllr Lee does have 
a political bias. 
 
On the meeting itself Cllr Dyer stated that, Cllr Strengiel indicated that 
he wanted to speak several times, but that Cllr Lee went to others 
first. He went on to say that at the end of the meeting (though clarified 
it could have been during the meeting) that Cllr Lee said “we are not 
all in this together”. 
 
Cllr Dyer says he recalled that Cllr Strengiel spoke two or three times 
at the meeting. On the first occasion Cllr Strengiel was speaking about 
prisons, Cllr Dyer describes his comment as “Eddie being Eddie”. Cllr 
Dyer said that Cllr Lee wouldn’t let him finish and interrupted him. Cllr 
Dyer stated that Cllr Lee didn’t interrupt others, and that she does 
have a certain way of chairing the meeting.   
 
Cllr Dyer went on to say that Cllr Burke was allowed to make a 
comment before he put his question.  
 
I put to Cllr Dyer the allegation made by others that him and Cllr 
Strengiel were whispering, sniggering and laughing during the 
meeting, Cllr Dyer said that during the meeting he and Cllr Strengiel 
commented to each other on Cllr Lee’s poor chairmanship, and that 



Carolyn Wheater – Monitoring Officer 
Investigation Report  
 

 19 

 
 
9.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.7   
 
 
 
 
9.8 
 
 
 
 
9.9 
 
 
9.10  
 
 
 
10.0 
 
10.1  

he was discreetly laughing, however Cllr Strengiel did not laugh, 
 
On describing what happened at the end of the meeting, Cllr Dyer 
states that Cllr Strengiel got up to put his coat on and told Cllr Lee that 
he was taking the matter to standards, due to how the meeting had 
been chaired. Cllr Lee didn’t comment, but Cllr Bushell did. Cllr Dyer 
describes Cllr Bushell’s behaviour as egging Cllr Strengiel on, that he 
was winding him up to get a reaction. Cllr Dyer said they were walking 
towards the door at this point, when Cllr Bushell stood up and said 
‘you need to be careful you will give yourself a heart attack’ Cllr 
Strengiel then shouted back at Cllr Bushell. 
 
Cllr Dyer stated that he considered Cllr Bushell’s behaviour as 
intellectually demeaning, he was shouting the comment about the 
heart attack and his tone was aggressive. Cllr Dyer said Cllr Strengiel 
was calm. 
 
On being specifically asked about the comment to ‘go outside’ Cllr 
Dyer said he could understand this reaction by Cllr Strengiel and then 
commented that what he meant by this was that Cllr Strengiel wanted 
to speak to Cllr Bushell in private. 
 
Cllr Dyer’s view is that if Cllr Bushell hadn’t been in the room, Cllr Lee 
would have just left the matter. 
 
In summary Cllr Dyer stated that Cllr Lee was very, very political with 
her questions and remarks. She did stop Cllr Strengiel speaking on 
several occasions but that she does not stop the labour Cllrs. 
 
Clarification with Ben Culling 
 
I re-interviewed Ben to see if his minutes of the committee indicated 
that Cllr Strengiel had spoken more than once. Whilst the minutes 
were not that specific, Ben’s recollection was that Cllr Strengiel spoke 
on one occasion only. 

  
 
11. 

 
Member Code of Conduct 
 

11.1 As outlined earlier in the report, the code of conduct states: 
 
“when acting in your role as a member of the authority: do treat 
others with respect and not bully any person” 
 

11.2 Guidance from the former Standards for England states that; ‘ideas 
and policies can be robustly criticised, but individuals should not be 
subject to unreasonable or excessive personal attack. This particularly 
applies to dealing with the public and officers.’ 

  
 



Carolyn Wheater – Monitoring Officer 
Investigation Report  
 

 20 

11.3 The guidance goes on to state that for a member, if any criticism is a 
personal attack or of an offensive nature, it is likely to cross the line of 
what is acceptable behaviour. 
 

12. Why, and to what extent do I think the code has been breached. 
 

12.1 For the purpose of the investigation I have broken down the complaint 
and any counter allegations into what happened during the meeting 
and what happened at the close of the meeting. 
 
During the Meeting 
 
1                        In Cllr Lee’s email to me of the 29th November and in 
her interview, she states that her description of Cllr Strengiel during 
the meeting as being “rude and aggressive” related to the comment 
that Cllr Strengiel made about how prisoners were treated 200 years 
ago. 
Apart from Cllr Bushell however, no other witness who I interviewed 
have specifically described Cllr Strengiel’s comment in that way. With 
reference to Cllr Strengiel’s comment, Ben says that Cllr Strengiel 
went the ‘long way round’ before asking his question and Simon 
simply says at this point the meeting got quite political. Neither Officer 
commented that Cllr Strengiel was rude or aggressive in making his 
comment. 
 
Cllr Bushell did specifically make reference to Cllr Strengiels’ 
comment describing this as “highly embarrassing” yet does not go on 
to use similar language to that used by Cllr Lee. 
 
Whilst therefore not commenting on what Cllr Strengiel said, I do 
not think that the manner in which he said it was rude and 
aggressive and therefore do not think that the code of conduct 
has been breached by Cllr Strengiel in relation to that particular 
issue. 
 
2                     Cllr Strengiel in turn has stated that Cllr Lee interrupted 
him whilst he was making this comment, and asked him for a 
question. All witnesses agree that this did in fact happen, however I 
can find no evidence that Cllr Lee, as alleged by Cllr Strengiel, 
shouted him down at this point, it would seem that Cllr Lee was firm 
and assertive in her response. 
 
3                   All witnesses have made a comment on the behaviour of 
Cllrs Strengiel and Cllr Dyer during the meeting, where they appeared 
to be whispering and perhaps laughing after or during an external 
witness speaking. 
 
Cllr Strengiel and Cllr Dyer, both say they were whispering, but that 
only Cllr Dyer was laughing.  
 



Carolyn Wheater – Monitoring Officer 
Investigation Report  
 

 21 

Whilst this does not specifically form the main part of this code of 
conduct complaint, as Monitoring Officer, I would wish to flag up that I 
consider that two Cllrs behaving in this way in front of external 
representatives, who this Council has specifically invited to attend and  
speak, to be very unprofessional. 
 
4                      With regards the allegations made by Cllr Strengiel and 
Cllr Dyer that Cllr Lee was biased to her own members in the 
committee; was acting in a political manner; chaired the meeting 
unfairly and made a political comment. 
 
(i) Firstly, it is clear from all witnesses that Cllr Lee did say, in front of 
the external representatives the comment, “that we are not all in this 
together are we?” 
Cllr Lee admits that she did say this and regrets saying that. I agree 
that this can clearly be interpreted as a political comment and that Cllr 
Lee should not have said this during a scrutiny committee and 
certainly not in front of external people. 
 
(ii) With regards the allegation that Cllr Lee was biased towards her 
members. Cllr Dyer has indicated that Cllr Strengiel tried to speak at 
several points during the meeting, but that Cllr Lee allowed others to 
speak first. No other witness made reference to the fact that Cllr 
Strengiel tried to speak again at the committee, I therefore discount 
this particular allegation. 
 
(iii) With regards to the fact that Cllr Bushell and Cllr Burke were 
seemingly allowed to comment rather than ask a question (or have a 
lengthy comment before a question) and were not stopped in a similar 
manner to Cllr Strengiel. There does seems to be some merit in this 
assertion which could have been seen as an unfairness. I note that 
Cllr Bushell states that his comments were factually based, because 
of his professional background, however this distinction was not made 
clear at the beginning of the meeting and I therefore consider it was 
incorrect not to apply the ‘question rule’ to everyone.  
 
(iv) With regards to the chairing of the meeting, on being asked, both 
officers have stated that they thought that Cllr Lee chaired the meeting 
well, that it was correct for Cllr Lee to ask for questions and that they 
saw no evidence of bias. 
 
In summary, with regards the events during the meeting, whilst 
clearly some issues have been identified, I do not think that Cllr 
Strengiel’s behaviour breached the member code of conduct. 
 
After the Meeting 
 
1   After the meeting closed, all witnesses agree that Cllr Strengiel 
immediately informed Cllr Lee and then Cllr Bushell that he would see 
them either with the Leader, or Legal or Monitoring Officer as he 



Carolyn Wheater – Monitoring Officer 
Investigation Report  
 

 22 

considered that the meeting was chaired unfairly and that these Cllrs 
were political. It is clear that Cllr Lee didn’t respond at this point and 
that Cllr Bushell did. 
 
2    Cllr Strengiel’s behaviour and manner at this point has been 
variously described as; ‘shouting, clearly wound up, angry, very loud, 
rude and aggressive’. Cllr Strengiel in addition has admitted that he 
‘lost his rag’, that he did get cross, and that he was sorry that he had 
behaved like that in front of officers. Cllr Strengiel stated that he 
wasn’t proud of his behaviour and that perhaps he did overreact. 
 
3    It is also clear from my interview of all witnesses, that during this 
altercation Cllr Strengiel did offer Cllr Bushell “to go outside” (or words 
to that effect). This was in response to Cllr Bushell telling Cllr Strengiel 
to calm down as he would have a heart attack. 
 
Despite Cllr Strengiel and Cllr Dyer saying the interpretation of this 
was to go outside and talk about the matter in private, it is very clear 
to me that this was not the intention of those words. It seems a clear 
interpretation of these words as being a threat of violence (whether 
intended to be carried out or not) and I agree with Cllr Bushell’s 
interpretation of this. 
 
I therefore consider Cllr Strengiel behaviour at the end of the 
committee, with regards his accusations and loss of temper and 
his ‘offering’ Cllr Bushell to “go outside” does breach the 
member code of conduct in failing to treat others with respect.  

  
13. Potential Mitigation 

 
13.1 
 
 
 
 
13.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
13.3 
 
 
 
 
13.4 
 
 

It is acknowledged that on the 23rd November, Cllr Strengiel 
apologised to Ben Culling and tried to contact Simon Colburn, for 
them having to listen to the altercation at the committee. (Cllr Strengiel 
apologised to Simon Colburn on the 3rd January 2017). 
 
Cllr Strengiel during his interview, did summarise by saying that he 
wished me to understand why he ended up feeilng the way that he 
did. From interviewing the members and officers, it is clear that Cllr 
Lee’s comment saying “we are not all in this together” was 
inappropriate and I have some understanding that this may have 
aggrieved Cllr Strengiel. 
 
In addition, whilst I am not agreeing that at this committee Cllr Lee 
was politically biased, if it was the case that Cllrs Bushell and  Burke 
were allowed to comment and not ask a specific question, then this 
does seem to me to be unfair. 
 
With regards Cllr Strengiel’s shouting and accusations of bias at the 
end of the meeting, as I have not seen any evidence of this, I do not 
necessarily see any mitigating factors towards this behaviour. 



Carolyn Wheater – Monitoring Officer 
Investigation Report  
 

 23 

 
13.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
13.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Concerning the actual comment by Cllr Strengiel to Cllr Bushell to 
“see him outside”. Both officers and Cllr Dyer have indicated, that it 
was apparent that however well-intentioned Cllr Bushell was in trying 
to calm the situation down, using language such as “you will have a 
heart attack” merely served to make Cllr Stengiel’s behaviour worse. 
Indeed Cllr Lee in her interview states that Cllr Bushell was “quite 
defensive on her behalf.” Whilst Cllr Bushell describes his behaviour 
as being calm throughout, others have indicated that both Cllrs were 
shouting at each other. 
 
I am bound to say in summary also, that I add to the comments made 
by the Chief Executive that there is some surprise as to why Cllr Lee 
changed her mind about reporting this breach of the code of conduct. 
Cllr Lee told me that she was encouraged to change her mind from 
other Cllrs including the new Cllrs and that she feels that she has a 
duty to these junior Cllrs. However, whilst appreciating the very real 
difficulty in getting involved in a code of conduct issues whilst just 
been appointed, I have heard nothing on this matter from those Cllrs. 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Carolyn Wheater – Monitoring Officer 

 

Addendum to Investigation Report 

January 2017 

 

Case reference KL/ES 

 

1 On the 24th January 2017, I received a member Code of Conduct 

complaint from Cllr Strengiel against Cllr Lee, this complaint is attached as 

Appendix 8.  

Cllr Strengiel states that the nature of his complaint relates to: 

 

 Cllr Lee’s chairing skills 

 Her fairness in chairing the meeting 

 Attempting to embarrass a member in front of external 

representatives 

 Politicising a scrutiny committee 

 

2 I spoke to the Independent Person on receipt of the complaint. It was 

agreed that as those elements of Cllr Strengiel’s complaint had already 

been comprehensively covered in my investigation report, then there was 

no need to interview Cllr Lee and Cllr Strengiel again on this matter. 

3 The Hearing Sub-Committee is therefore asked to consider the original 

complaint made by Cllr Lee and the counter code of conduct complaint 

made by Cllr Strengiel as part of the same Hearing. This is considered to 

be a reasonable way forward as both complaints are clearly linked. 

  



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 

 

-----Original Message----- 
From: Lee, Karen (City of Lincoln Council) 
Sent: 28 November 2016 22:11 
To: Wheater, Carolyn (City of Lincoln Council) <Carolyn.Wheater@lincoln.gov.uk> 
Cc: Ellis, Geoff (City of Lincoln Council) <Geoff.Ellis@lincoln.gov.uk>; Metcalfe, 
Richard (City of Lincoln Council) <Richard.Metcalfe@lincoln.gov.uk> 
Subject: Complaint 
 
Dear Carolyn, 
 
Further to our telephone conversation this morning I am contacting you to request 
that you conduct an investigation into the events immediately following the meeting 
of Community Leadership Scrutiny Committee on 22nd November.  
 
I refer specifically to the conduct of Cllr Strengiel. I have received a number of 
comments of concern from fellow Councillors and have therefore decided that I 
would like this to be investigated to establish if there was a breach of the Code of 
Conduct. 
 
I have copied both Cllr Ellis as Chair of Ethics and Engagement and Cllr Metcalfe as 
Council Leader into this email for their information. 
 
Regards 
Cllr Lee 



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2 

 

-----Original Message----- 
From: Lee, Karen (City of Lincoln Council) 
Sent: 29 November 2016 22:53 
To: Wheater, Carolyn (City of Lincoln Council) <Carolyn.Wheater@lincoln.gov.uk> 
Cc: Ellis, Geoff (City of Lincoln Council) <Geoff.Ellis@lincoln.gov.uk>; Metcalfe, 
Richard (City of Lincoln Council) <Richard.Metcalfe@lincoln.gov.uk>; Andrews, 
Angela (City of Lincoln Council) <Angela.Andrews@lincoln.gov.uk> 
Subject: Re: Complaint 
 
Dear Carolyn 
 
Can I first of all request formally that you speak to both Simon Colburn and Ben 
Culling to ascertain from them the conversations which took place during and after 
last weeks CLSC. That would provide you with an unbiased account of events 
immediately following the meeting on 22nd November. 
 
I would consider there was a breach of the code of conduct for a number of reasons. 
Cllr Strengiel's manner towards me was rude, bullying and aggressive. He accused 
me of bias and poor Chairing, something I would absolutely dispute. He made no 
attempt to speak to me in a reasonable manner, preferring instead to attempt to 
frighten me. He was not courteous or even civil, as is the conduct expected of an 
elected member.  
 
This is not the first time recently that Cllr Strengiel has been rude to me in front of 
Officers and during a meeting. Simon Colburn was present then too, as was Cllr Mair 
and a Scrutiny witness a couple of meetings ago. 
 
On 22nd November Cllr Strengiel made a number of comments, I cannot remember 
all of these but they certainly included an invitation to "go outside" to my Vice Chair 
Cllr Bushell. That is completely inappropriate in any setting most especially a Council 
venue with Officers present. He put those Officers in a very difficult position. I would 
question if that too contravenes the Code of Conduct? 
 
Cllr Strengiel made what I felt was a somewhat odd and very political comment 
during the meeting and went on to have a loud whispered conversation with Cllr Dyer 
following that. He was intentionally disruptive. As Chair I would have liked to have 
asked him not to make a noise whilst people, including invited guest witnesses, were 
speaking but felt he would react very negatively to that and so did not intervene as 
Chair. 
 
I hope this has given you enough information to begin an investigation but if you 
need a word I am not at work on Wednesday and will have my mobile 
(07818423079) with me. 
 
Regards 
Cllr Lee 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3 

From: Chris Burke [mailto:chrisburkelincs@gmail.com]  
Sent: 29 November 2016 13:12 
To: Wheater, Carolyn (City of Lincoln Council) <Carolyn.Wheater@lincoln.gov.uk>; 
Ellis, Geoff (City of Lincoln Council) <Geoff.Ellis@lincoln.gov.uk>; Metcalfe, Richard 
(City of Lincoln Council) <Richard.Metcalfe@lincoln.gov.uk>; Lee, Karen (City of 
Lincoln Council) <Karen.Lee@lincoln.gov.uk> 
Subject: Fwd: Complaint 
 
Dear Carolyn, 
 
Further to Karen's email below I would like to add my concern. The incident arose 
from Eddie's determination at the end of the meeting to insist to Karen that she was 
chairing the meeting in a way unfair to him. I saw no evidence of this and found his 
approach discourteous and aggressive. I did ask Eddie to desist. When Bob Bushel 
intervened to attempt to stabilise the situation  Eddie became even more aggressive 
and indicated that he would be happy to "see you outside". I think that Eddies 
approach can often be robust but helpful and he is usually able to accept the chair 
and meeting structure however I feel on this occasion he has threatened a fellow 
councillor. This undermines the democratic structure and introduces an 
unacceptable level of coercion. I feel that he attempted to bully Karen and that is 
also unacceptable behaviour in my view. I would request that an enquiry occurs so 
that this behaviour can be addressed and our normally high standards restored. 
 
---------- Forwarded message ---------- 
From: Karen Lee <karenleelincoln@gmail.com> 
Date: 28 November 2016 at 22:22 
Subject: Fwd: Complaint 
To: Helena Mair <helenamair@me.com>, Naomi Tweddle 
<naomi.tweddle@googlemail.com>, Sue Burke <susanjaneburke@gmail.com>, 
chrisburkelincs@gmail.com, gillchewson@gmail.com, 
robert.bushell870625@ntlworld.com, p.a.gowen@btinternet.com 
 
Dear Colleagues 
 
See forwarded email below for your information. My first reaction was not to take this 
matter forward but following further consideration I have spoken to Carolyn Wheater. 
I am advised by her that if you as members were concerned about what happened 
you need to also send her an email voicing that concern and she will include your 
comments as part of her investigation. 
 
Karen 
---------- Forwarded message ---------- 
From: Lee, Karen (City of Lincoln Council) <Karen.Lee@lincoln.gov.uk> 
Date: Mon, Nov 28, 2016 at 10:10 PM 
Subject: Complaint 
To: "Wheater, Carolyn (City of Lincoln Council)" <Carolyn.Wheater@lincoln.gov.uk> 
Cc: "Ellis, Geoff (City of Lincoln Council)" <Geoff.Ellis@lincoln.gov.uk>, "Metcalfe, 
Richard (City of Lincoln Council)" <Richard.Metcalfe@lincoln.gov.uk> 
 
 



APPENDIX 3 

Dear Carolyn, 
 
Further to our telephone conversation this morning I am contacting you to request 
that you conduct an investigation into the events immediately following the meeting 
of Community Leadership Scrutiny Committee on 22nd November. 
 
I refer specifically to the conduct of Cllr Strengiel. I have received a number of 
comments of concern from fellow Councillors and have therefore decided that I 
would like this to be investigated to establish if there was a breach of the Code of 
Conduct. 
 
I have copied both Cllr Ellis as Chair of Ethics and Engagement and Cllr Metcalfe as 
Council Leader into this email for their information. 
 
Regards 
Cllr Lee 
 
City of Lincoln Council is a Living Wage employer. If you would like to know more 
about the Living Wage, or sign up to the Making Lincoln Living Wage campaign, 
please visit www.lincolnagainstpoverty.co.uk/livingwage 
 
This transmission is intended for the named addressee(s) only and may contain 
sensitive or classified material up to OFFICIAL and should be handled accordingly. 
Unless you are the named addressee (or authorised to receive it for the addressee) 
you may not copy or use it, or disclose it to anyone else. Please also notify the 
sender immediately 
Under the Data Protection Act 1998 and the Freedom of Information Act 2000 the 
contents of this email may be disclosed. 
The City of Lincoln Council reserves the right to monitor both sent and received 
emails. 
 
 
 
 
 
--  
Warmest Regards, 
Chris Burke. 
Cllr Chris Burke MBA 
  
  
Deputy Mayor of Lincoln 
 
 
Colegrave House, 
Colegrave Street, 
Lincoln, 
LN5 8DW. 
 
Mobile : 0756 154 3648. 



APPENDIX 3 

Home Telephone (Lincoln)  01522 856296 
Professional Web Site: http://www.chrisburkelincoln.co.uk/ 
 
Professional Email: office@chrisburkelincoln.co.uk  
 
Important Notice 
Please note that I may share information received to resolve case work with  other 
colleagues, councillors, City officers and other relevant agencies. If you have any 
objection to my doing so, please let me know as soon as possible.  This e-mail and 
any attachments may contain confidential and or proprietary information and is 
intended only to be seen and used by the intended recipient(s). If you are not the 
intended recipient any use, disclosure, dissemination, alternation, forwarding, 
printing or copying of this e-mail and any attachments is unauthorised. If you have 
received this e-mail in error, please notify the sender immediately by e-mail and 
permanently delete this e-mail and any attachments. The statements and opinions 
expressed in this e-mail and any attachments are those of the author and may not 
necessarily represent those of the organisation in the text or address. 
Please check for viruses before accessing this e-mail and any attachments. Except 
as required by law, Cllr Chris Burke shall not be responsible for any damage, loss or 
liability of any kind suffered in connection with this e-mail and any attachments, or 
which may result from reliance on the contents of this e-mail and any attachments. 
Thank you for your cooperation. 
Our website is at http://www.chrisburkelincoln.co.uk/ 



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 4 

-----Original Message----- 
From: Bushell, Bob (City of Lincoln Council) 
Sent: 03 December 2016 22:59 
To: Wheater, Carolyn (City of Lincoln Council) <Carolyn.Wheater@lincoln.gov.uk> 
Cc: Lee, Karen (City of Lincoln Council) <Karen.Lee@lincoln.gov.uk>; Ellis, Geoff 
(City of Lincoln Council) <Geoff.Ellis@lincoln.gov.uk> 
Subject: CLSC complaint 
 
 
Good morning Carolyn, 
 
Please find my observations on the CLSC meeting held on Tuesday 22nd November 
2016. 
 
I am not trying to 'stick the proverbial boot in' but feel there is a situation which 
clearly needs resolving. 
 
I don't think it is a secret that there is some tension between Cllr Streingel and Cllr 
Lee. This I believe is now having a damaging affect on the work of the committee 
and causing embarrassment when we have new inexperienced members perhaps 
not familiar with this type of confrontational behaviour. 
 
The way I see it and I am trying to be as objective as possible is that Cllr Streingel 
has difficulty with apolitical consensual meetings. He is very politically defensive and 
seems to prefer confrontational politics. His only contribution at the meeting was 
embarrassing for all concerned. He spent the rest of the meeting making inaudible 
comments to his fellow Conservative councillor. We are fairly used to this kind of 
behaviour which has been apparent previously but his behaviour at the end of the 
meeting was I believe unacceptable particularly in front of the officers and other 
members. 
 
Cllr Streingel suddenly declared that he would see the chair in the Leader's office 
with 'legal'. He told the chair that she was too political. I tried to intervene and asked 
him to sit down and discuss the matter but he then complained that I too was too 
'political'. I reminded him that CLSC should be apolitical but he became increasingly 
angry. I asked him to calm down and told him he was embarrassing himself and that 
in his excited state he could have a heart attack. This culminated in Cllr Streingel 
offering to 'take me outside'. I asked him if he was threatening me and he said he 
wanted to see which one of us was the strongest. All of this exchange was witnessed 
by the full committee and the two officers present. 
 
I am fairly confident that the next time I see Cllr Streingel we will be able to shake 
hands and not hold a grudge as this isn't the first time I have witnessed this type of 
aggressive and bullying behaviour from him. I do however think that his behaviour is 
becoming intolerable and difficult for the chair to manage. We are constantly 'walking 
on eggshells' with him. He did mention that he may stand down from the committee 
and that may indeed be the easiest way to resolve the matter to everyone's 
satisfaction. 
 
Regards, 



APPENDIX 4 

 
Bob Bushell 
 
 
Sent from my iPad 



APPENDIX 5 

> -----Original Message----- 
> From: Strengiel, Edmund (City of Lincoln Council) 
> Sent: 23 November 2016 10:10 
> To: Culling, Ben (City of Lincoln Council)  
> <Ben.Culling@lincoln.gov.uk> 
> Cc: Andrews, Angela (City of Lincoln Council)  
> <Angela.Andrews@lincoln.gov.uk> 
> Subject: Community Leadership 
>  
> Dear Ben 
>  
> I appreciate why you do not want to call me back. I did not want to discuss what 
happened at the end of the meeting but only to apologise to you and Simon for 
having to listen to the altercation between me and the chairmanship. 
> I'm sorry if it offended either or both of you. 
>  
> Kind regards 
> Cllr Eddie Strengiel 
>  
> Sent from my iPad 



This page is intentionally left blank







Community Leadership Scrutiny Committee 22 November 2016 

 
Present: Councillor Karen Lee (in the Chair) 

 
Councillors: Chris Burke, Sue Burke, Bob Bushell, Gill Clayton-

Hewson, Thomas Dyer, Paul Gowen, Helena Mair, 
Edmund Strengiel and Naomi Tweddle 
 

Also in Attendance: None. 
 

Apologies for Absence: Councillor Liz Maxwell 

 
24.  Welcome and Introductions  

 
The Chair welcomed the external representatives and committee members. 
 

25.  Confirmation of Minutes - 30 August 2016  
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 30 August 2016 be confirmed. 
 

26.  Declarations of Interest  
 

Councillor Bob Bushell declared a Personal Interest with regard to the agenda item 
titled 'Review of Suicide Rates in Lincoln - Support and Care - Statutory Mental 
Health Services'. Reason: He declared that he was a retired mental health nurse  
 

27.  Review of Suicide Rates in Lincoln - Support and Care - Statutory Mental 
Health Services  

(a)   Public Health - Written Statement   
 
The Assistant Director (Health and Environment) read the written statement provided 
by Public Health, the following points were highlighted: 
 

 that the suicide review in Lincoln was dealt with through a multi-agency which 
met as the Suicide Prevention Steering Group (SPSG). 

 

 this group fed into the Lincolnshire Suicide Prevention Action Plan. 
 

 one of the key functions of Public Health was to produce the Annual Suicide 
Audit report. 

 

 that Public Health were in the process of obtaining a data sharing agreement 
with Lincolnshire Coroners regarding completed suicides for the next annual 
audit. This would hopefully allow a better understanding of risk factors in the 
county. 

(b)   Tony Connell   
 
Tony Connell – Health Support Manager, Humberside, Lincolnshire and North 
Yorkshire Community Rehabilitation Company (HLNYCRC) raised the following key 
points regarding suicide rates within the prison population and those accessing 
probation services: 
 



 The HLNYCRC had dealt with over 1,400 people at risk from suicide when 
leaving the prison system in the previous year. Though they were only being 
funded up to March 2017. 

 

 Drug and Alcohol were large contributory factors within the prison and 
probation populations towards suicide. 

 

 Provision for Healthcare in jails were usually above standard, the problem 
comes when people are released and do not seek help. 

 

 At any one time there were 80,000 people in prison and 80,000 in the 
probation services. 

 

 Within the general population one in six people would suffer from a mental 
illness in their lifetime. 

 

 Within most suicide cases, especially within the prison system people did not 
want to die but wanted to escape a situation. 

 

 Self-harm in prisons had increased by 26% from the previous year, there had 
also been an increase in the number of assaults carried out on prisoners by 
34%. 

 

 Overall deaths in the prison service (324) had increased by 21% (from 267), 
with an increase of self-inflicted deaths of 13%, this equated to 107 suicides 
up from 95 in the previous year. 
 

The committee asked the following questions and received the relevant responses: 
 
Question Were there any available statistics for assaults from prison staff on 
prisoners? 
Answer There were no publicly available statistics. 
 
Question Had the recent lack of prison officers affected suicide rates? 
Answer Not directly in terms of suicide. However, they may have had an inadvertent 
effect because there was not enough officers to supervise free time and therefore 
some prisoners may have reduced time out of their cell. 
 
Question Was there a noticeable trend with suicide, and mental health and staff 
being effected within prison? 
Answer There was a lot of pressure on staff due to under staffed prisons and 
exposure to prisoners with mental health and suicidal behavioural issues meant it 
had a ripple effect on staff which should not be understated. 
 
Question With such an increase in deaths and suicides in the prison system, could 
improvements be made to the healthcare system in prisons? 
Answer The problem was not with the healthcare system in prison but the lack of 
support people faced when they were released and were in the probation system. 
 
Question If no further funding was secured for the company who would provide 
support for people who were released? 
Answer There was no other comparative service  that would support people in the 
way the company did. It was important for people released from prison to feel as 
though they were contributing to society, but there was very little support and 
guidance out there. 



 
Question Where did Lincoln Prison rank in terms of suicide rates comparative to 
other prisons in the country? 
Answer Lincoln Prison was mid-table in terms of death by suicide nationally. 
 
Question Had the prevalence of legal highs in prisons effected suicide rates? 
Answer Whilst it was difficult to quantify the exact impact of legal highs on suicide 
rates in the prison system there was no doubt that they had an extreme negative 
effect on prison populations and would no doubt contribute to mental health issues 
and suicidal behaviour. 
 
Question How could the upward trend of suicide rates in Lincoln be reversed? 
Answer The solution needs to come from government, economically and culturally. 
Unfortunately mental health was often not seen in a brilliant light and that attitude 
needed to change before any real change could be made. 

(c)   Dr Sue Elcock and Colin Warren   
 
Dr Sue Elcock – Medical Director, Lincolnshire Partnership Foundation Trust (LPFT) 
and Colin Warren – Head of Commissioning Mental Health, NHS Southwest Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG) made the following key points regarding suicide rates 
nationally and in Lincoln: 
 

 That suicide prevention in Lincoln was not black and white, there were many 
organisations that were responsible for mental health provision and suicide 
prevention.  

 LPFT worked with the wider groups to try and remedy suicidal behaviour, 
Lincoln were in the bottom 25% for mental health referral, based on patients 
being referred from doctors to mental health trusts. 

  There had been some delays getting services to Lincolnshire which could 
explain the increase in suicide rates. 

 The Crisis Team service was based out in the east coast, and Lincoln. It was 
quite a skeletal system in the current format but a business case had gone in 
to improve services. 

 The Southwest Lincolnshire CCG commissioned groups to fill gaps in 
provision for mental health services, including dealing with suicidal behaviour 
and prevention for the entire county. 

 They were directly funded from central government however funding was 
limited. 

 Every organisation the CCG worked with was asked what they could do to 
prevent suicides and new ways of working towards reducing the rate. 

 
The committee asked the following questions and received the relevant response: 
 
Question In the context of this review was the decision to take your own life valid? 
Answer The LPFT or CCG did not deal with euthanasia, it was also explained that 
self-harm was often linked to suicide although these were also not inextricably 
linked, sometimes self-harm was used to manage pain. 
 
Keith Waters added that suicide was often seen as unusual behaviour, however, 
suicidal thinking was a normal behaviour in humans but the actual act of carrying it 
out was the unusual part. He explained that depression and suicide were often 
wrongly closely linked, very few people with depression went on to die by suicide. It 
was difficult to link mental health and suicide.  
 



Question Were some groups more vulnerable to suicide than other groups 
comparatively? 
Answer The LGBT community was at higher risk. In Lincoln young males were three 
times more likely to commit suicide. People at high risk of suicide were people with 
no social security, physical illness, mental illness or if they were lonely or without a 
job. 
 
Question What were considered the greatest contributory factors toward people 
considering death by suicide? 
Answer The problem with taking a ‘factor’ approach to suicide prevention was the 
actual cause for people feeling suicidal were usually very personal and specific to 
the person and their story. 
 
Question Were patients referred to voluntary services from statutory services in 
Lincoln or were patients encouraged to make their own appointments? 
Answer Staff supported patients making the first appointment at the end of a course 
of mental health treatment and offered them guidance on what non-statutory 
services were available to help them. 
 
Colin Warren advised that often when people were ending their treatment they just 
needed to talk to someone but often did not feel comfortable taking that first step to 
organising further help with a non-statutory voluntary service. 
 
Question What training had been offered to staff at the statutory service level to 
deal with people with suicidal behaviour? 
Answer Training had been offered to everyone in Lincolnshire through the Suicide 
Safe scheme, staff within the services had also been given more specialist training. 
Problems arose when the training was not used often enough and therefore when a 
situation arose people did not feel comfortable discussing suicide and talking 
through others mental health, a cultural shift was needed before this would change. 
 
Question Did the statutory and non-statutory services work well together? 
Answer Generally the services worked well with one another, both the LPFT and 
CCG had good relationships with many of the non-statutory services offered in 
Lincoln. The challenge often came from the resources that were available and the 
geographical nature of Lincolnshire, this was especially true of crisis teams in an 
emergency situation. 
 
Question The committee inquired what were the gaps in statutory service provision 
and what could be done about them? 
Answer Due to funding a lot of resources were geared towards treatment and 
reactionary services, there would ideally be more preventative measures put in 
place. Strategies like ensuring help and support was provided earlier on, accessing 
schools and remote areas to provide support, training and preventative services set 
up. Colin advised further that they would like all medical staff whether GPs, physical 
nurse etc. to be trained to a high level of suicide awareness but funding was the 
issue. A multi-agency response between East Midlands Ambulance Service, 
Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue, Lincolnshire Police and Lincoln University using joint 
intelligence and systems would greatly help identify and support people with suicidal 
behaviour. The Suicide Safe scheme was working towards this end making 
everyone aware that suicide prevention was everyone’s responsibility to offer 
guidance and support for those that want to talk if the need arose. 
 
Question Councillors queried whether training to spot suicidal behaviour was 
offered to GP’s receptionists? 



Answer A basic level of training had been made available to anyone in Lincolnshire, 
it was whether the receptionists were interested to attend or able to due to work 
commitments. 
 
Question What training could be made available to Council staff? 
Answer There were a number of packages available depending on the budget and 
detail of the training ranging from free to £150 per person. 
 
Keith Waters highlighted that most GP’s were not fully trained or aware of how to 
detect suicidal behaviour which was expected from the public but was not actually 
the case. 
 
Colin Warren advised that the Southwest CCG were looking into commissioning a 
mental health nurse that could take emergency calls. 
 
Sue Elcock informed that the rapid response car from the Crisis Service was set up 
to be deployed across Lincolnshire within an hour.  
 
Question Were enough beds available across Lincolnshire for emergency crisis 
beds? 
Answer This was both a problem nationally and county-wide, Lincoln was especially 
short of emergency beds but it was a problem of funding and logistics. 

(d)   Keith Waters   
 
Keith Waters, representing himself had previously undertaken extensive research 
investigating Self-Harm and Suicide Prevention and raised the following key points 
regarding suicide rates in Lincoln: 
 

 Advised that recently there had been a lot of political energy surrounding the 
subject of suicide awareness and prevention and that this was positive to see. 

 Informed to really make a difference to suicide rates a revitalised strategy was 
required which would need to come from central government to make cultural 
and economic changes to the way the services were funded and how the 
public dealt with and interpreted suicide in society. 

 Expressed that it was important for people to realise that suicide was 
everyone’s responsibility, making contact and support those in distress was a 
powerful mechanism to engage and hopefully begin that person on a path to 
better mental health. 

 Explained a lot of positive work was happening currently to raise awareness 
but the momentum needed to be maintained to ensure that rate of suicides 
continued to decline. 

 
The committee asked the following questions and received the relevant response: 
 
Question The committee enquired to what extent did poverty have an effect on 
suicide rates? 
Answer This was dependent ‘cohesive’ poverty where there was a poor community 
that would pull together often had very little effect on those within that community’s 
mental health and suicide rates in that area. However, in cases of austerity and 
isolated poverty where people feel alone and unsupported within society there could 
be a real negative effect on both mental health and suicide rates. 
 
RESOLVED that the report and members comments be noted. 

28.  Work Programme for 2016/2017  
 



The Democratic Services Officer: 
 

a. presented the Community Leadership Scrutiny Committee work programme 
for 2016/17. 

  
Members discussed the work programme for 2016/17, and the potential that the 
suicide review may require an additional meeting in the next municipal year. It was 
agreed that the timetable of meetings would be bought to the January committee if it 
was available. 
  
RESOLVED that: 
 

1. the work programme be noted. 
 

2. the timetable of meetings for 2017/18 be bought to the next meeting. 
 



Code of Conduct for Members 
 
1.0 Application 
 
1.1 This code applies to you whenever you are acting in your capacity as a member of 

this authority and it is your responsibility to comply with the provisions of this Code. 
 
1.2 You are a representative of this authority and the public will view you as such 

therefore your actions impact on how the authority as a whole is viewed and your 
actions can have both positive and negative impacts on the authority. 

 
1.3 The Code is based upon the ‘Nolan Principles – the seven principles of public life’ 

which are set out as Appendix 1. 
 
2.0 Interpretation 
 
2.1 In this Code –  
 

“meeting” means any meeting of:  
 

(a) the authority; 
 

(b) the executive of the authority; 
 

(c) any of the authority’s or its executive’s committees, sub-committees, joint 
committees, joint sub-committees, or area committees; 

 
whether or not the press and public are excluded from the meeting in question by 
virtue of a resolution of members. 
 
“member” includes a co-opted member and an appointed member. 

 
3.0 General Conduct 
 
When acting in your role as a member of the authority: 

 
3.1 Do treat others with respect and not bully any person 

 
3.2 Do provide leadership to the authority by personal example 

 
3.3 Do not conduct yourself in a manner which is likely to bring the authority into 

disrepute 

 

3.4 Do use your position as a member in the public interest and not for personal 
advantage 

 

3.5 Do not disclose information given to you in confidence by anyone, or 
information acquired by you which you believe, or ought reasonably to be 
aware, is of a confidential nature, except where: 

 
(i) you have the consent of a person authorised to give it; 

 
(ii) you are required by law to do so 



 

(iii) the disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of 
obtaining professional legal advice provided that the third 
party agrees not to disclose the information to any other 
person; or 

 
(iv) the disclosure is: 

 
a. reasonable and in the public interest 

 
b. made in good faith and in compliance with the 

reasonable requirements of the authority; and 
 

c. you have consulted with the Monitoring Officer prior 
to its release if appropriate 

 
3.6 Do not prevent another person from gaining access to information to which 

that person is entitled to by law. 
 

3.7 When using or authorising the use by others of the resources of the authority: 
 
3.7.1.1 Do act in accordance with the authority’s reasonable 

requirements including the requirements of the authority’s 
ICT policy, copies of which have been provided to you and 
you are deemed to have read; 
 

3.7.1.2 Do make sure that such resources are not used improperly 
for political purposes (including party political purposes); 
and 

 
3.7.1.3 Do have regard to any applicable Local Authority Code of 

Publicity made under the Local Government Act 1986. 
 
4.0 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
 
You must –  
 

4.1 comply with the statutory requirements to register, disclose and withdraw from 
participating in respect of any matter in which you have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest. The statutory requirements with regards to disclosable pecuniary 
interests are attached as Appendix 2 to this code. 

 
4.2 ensure that your register of interests is kept up to date and notify the Monitoring 

Officer in writing within 28 days of becoming aware of any change in respect of 
your disclosable pecuniary interests 

 
4.3 make verbal declaration of the existence and nature of any disclosable pecuniary 

interest at any meeting at which you are present at which an item or business 
affects or relates to the subject matter of that interest is under consideration, at 
or before the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest 
becomes apparent 

 
5.0  Other Interests 
 



5.1  You must, within 28 days of: 
 

(a) this Code being adopted by or applied to your authority; or 
 
(b) your election or appointment to office (where that is later), 
notify the Monitoring Officer in writing of the details of your other personal 
interests, where they fall within the following descriptions, for inclusion in the 
register of interests. 

 
5.2 You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where either it relates 

to or is likely to affect: 
 
(i) any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or 
management and to which you are appointed or nominated by your authority; 

 
(ii) any body— 

 
(aa) exercising functions of a public nature; 
 
(bb) directed to charitable purposes; or 

 
(cc) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion 
or policy (including any political party or trade union),  

 
of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management; 

 
(iii) any easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does not carry 
with it a right for you (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the land or to receive 
income. 
 

5.3  You must, within 28 days of becoming aware of any new interest or change to any 
interest registered under paragraph 5.1, notify the Monitoring Officer of the details of 
that new interest or change. 

 
6.0  Disclosure of interests 
 
6.1 Subject to paragraphs 6.2 to 6.5, where you have a personal interest described in 

paragraphs 5.2 or 6.2 in any business of your authority, and where you are aware or 
ought reasonably to be aware of the existence of the personal interest, and you 
attend a meeting of your authority at which the business is considered, you must 
disclose to that meeting the existence and nature of that interest at the 
commencement of that consideration, or when the interest becomes apparent. 

 
6.2 (A) You have a personal interest in any business of your authority 
 

(i) where a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be 
regarded as affecting your well-being or financial position or the well-
being or financial position of a relevant person to a greater extent than 
the majority of other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of 
the electoral division or ward, as the case may be, affected by the 
decision, or 
 

(ii)  it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests you have registered 
as a disclosable pecuniary interest. 

 



(B) In paragraph 6.2(A), a relevant person is: 
 

(a) a member of your family or any person with whom you have a close 
association; or 
 
(b) any person or body who employs or has appointed such persons, any firm 
in which they are a partner, or any company of which they are directors; 
 
(c) any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial interest in a 
class of securities exceeding the nominal value of £25,000; or 
 
(d) any body of a type described in paragraph 5.2. 

 
6.3 Where you have a personal interest in any business of your authority which relates to 

or is likely to affect a person described in paragraph 5.1(i) or (ii)(aa) you need only 
disclose to the meeting the existence and nature of that interest when you address 
the meeting on that business. 

 
6.4 Where you have a personal interest but, by virtue of paragraph 8, sensitive 

information relating to it is not registered in your authority’s register of members’ 
interests, you must indicate to the meeting that you have a personal interest, but 
need not disclose the sensitive information to the meeting. 

 
6.5 Where you have a personal interest in any business of your authority and you have 

made an executive decision in relation to that business, you must ensure that any 
written statement of that decision records the existence and nature of that interest. 

 
7.0  Register of interests 
 
7.1 Any interests notified to the Monitoring Officer will be included in the register of 

interests. A copy of the register will be available for public inspection and will be 
published on the authority’s website. 

 
8.0  Sensitive interests 
 
8.1 Where you consider that disclosure of the details an interest could lead to you, or a 

person connected with you, being subject to violence or intimidation, and the 
Monitoring Officer agrees, if the interest is entered on the register, copies of the 
register that are made available for inspection and any published version of the 
register will exclude details of the interest, but may state that you have an interest, the 
details of which are withheld. 

 
9.0  Non-participation in case of pecuniary interest 
 
9.1 Where you have a personal interest in any business of your authority you also have a 

pecuniary interest in that business where the interest is one which a member of the 
public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant 
that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest and where that 
business— 

 
(a) affects your financial position or the financial position of a person or body 
described in paragraphs 5.2 or 6.2;or 
 



(b) relates to the determining of any approval, consent, licence, permission or 
registration in relation to you or any person or body described in paragraphs 
5.2 or 6.2. 

 
9.2 Subject to paragraphs 9.3 and 9.4, where you have a pecuniary interest in any 

business of your authority— 
 

a) You may not participate in any discussion of the matter at the meeting and 
should leave the room during consideration of the relevant matter. 

 
(b) You may not participate in any vote taken on the matter at the meeting.  
 
(c) If the interest is not registered, you must disclose the interest to the 
meeting.  
 
(d) If the interest is not registered and is not the subject of a pending 
notification, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 
days. In addition this Code and Standing Orders requires you to leave the 
room where the meeting is held while any discussion or voting takes place. 
 

9.3 Where you have a pecuniary interest in any business of your authority, you may 
attend a meeting but only for the purpose of making representations, answering 
questions or giving evidence relating to the business, provided that the public are 
also allowed to attend the meeting for the same purpose, whether under a statutory 
right or otherwise and you leave the room where the meeting is held immediately 
after making representations, answering questions or giving evidence.  

 
9.4.  Subject to you disclosing the interest at the meeting, you may attend a meeting and 

vote on a matter where you have a pecuniary interest that relates to the functions of 
your authority in respect of:  

 
(i) housing, where you are a tenant of your authority provided that those 

functions do not relate particularly to your tenancy or lease;  
 

(ii) school meals or school transport and travelling expenses, where you 
are a parent or guardian of a child in full time education, or are a 
parent governor of a school, unless it relates particularly to the school 
which the child attends;  

 

(iii) statutory sick pay under Part XI of the Social Security Contributions 
and Benefits Act 1992, where you are in receipt of, or are entitled to 
the receipt of, such pay;  

 

(iv) an allowance, payment or indemnity given to members;  

 
(v) any ceremonial honour given to members; and  

 

(vi) setting council tax or a precept under the Local Government Finance 
Act 1992. 

 
9.5.  Where, as an executive member, you may discharge a function alone, and you 

become aware of a pecuniary interest in a matter being dealt with, or to be dealt with 
by you, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any 



steps or further steps in the matter, or seek improperly to influence a decision about 
the matter. 

 
10.0  Interests arising in relation to scrutiny committees 
 
10.1 In relation to any business before a scrutiny committee of the authority (or of a sub-

committee of such a committee) where- 
 

10.1.1 That business relates to a decision made (whether implemented or 
not) or action taken by your authority’s executive or another of your 
authority’s committees, sub-committees, joint committees or joint sub-
committees; and 

 
10.1.2 At the time the decision was made or action was taken, you were a 

member of the executive, committee, sub-committee, joint committee 
or joint sub-committee mentioned in paragraph 10.1.1 and you were 
present when that decision was made or action was taken; 

 
                      Or 
 

10.1.3 that business relates to a decision made (whether implemented or not) 
or action taken by you (whether by virtue of the Council’s constitution 
or under delegated authority from the Leader); 

 
You may attend a meeting of the scrutiny committee of your local 
authority or of a sub-committee of such a committee but only for the 
purpose of making representations, answering questions or giving 
evidence relating to the business, provided that the public are also 
allowed to attend the meeting for the same purpose whether under a 
statutory right or otherwise. 

 
11.0 Gifts and Hospitality 
 
11.1    You must within 28 days of receipt, notify the Monitoring Officer in writing of  any 
gift,   benefit or hospitality with a value of in excess of £50 which you  have accepted as 
a member from any person  or body other than the  authority 
 
11.2 The Monitoring Officer will place your notification on a public register of gifts and 

hospitality 
 
11.3 This duty to notify the Monitoring Officer does not apply where the gift, benefit or 

hospitality comes within any description approved by the authority for this purpose. 
 



APPENDIX  1 
 
 

 
THE SEVEN PRINCIPLES OF PUBLIC LIFE 
 
SELFLESSNESS 
Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest. 
 
INTEGRITY 
Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to people or 
organisations that might try inappropriately to influence them in their work. They should not 
act or take decisions in order to gain financial or other material benefits for themselves, their 
family, or their friends. They must declare and resolve any interests and relationships. 
 
OBJECTIVITY 
Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on merit, using the 
best evidence and without discrimination or bias. 
 
ACCOUNTABILITY 
Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and actions and 
must submit themselves to the scrutiny necessary to ensure this. 
 
OPENNESS 
Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and transparent manner. 
Information should not be withheld from the public unless there are clear and lawful reasons 
for so doing. 
 
HONESTY 
Holders of public office should be truthful. 
 
LEADERSHIP 
Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own behaviour. They should 
actively promote and robustly support the principles and be willing to challenge poor 
behaviour wherever it occurs. 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Appendix 2 
 

 
Disclosable pecuniary interests 

 
This note explains the requirements of the Localism Act 2011 (Ss 29-34) and The Relevant 
Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012, in relation to disclosable 
pecuniary interests. 
 
These provisions are enforced by criminal sanction.  
 
 
1 Notification of disclosable pecuniary interests 
Within 28 days of becoming a member or co-opted member, you must notify the Monitoring 
Officer of any ‘disclosable pecuniary interests’. 
 
A ‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ is an interest of yourself or your partner (which means 
spouse or civil partner, a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or a person 
with whom you are living as if you are civil partners) within the following descriptions: 
(In the extracts from the Regulations below, ‘M’ means you and ‘relevant person’ means you 
and your partner, as above) 
 

Subject Prescribed description 

Employment, office, trade, profession or 
vacation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession 
or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 
 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other 
financial benefit (other than from the 
relevant authority) made or provided 
within the relevant period in respect of 
any expenses incurred by M in carrying 
out duties as a member, or towards the 
election expenses of M. 
This includes any payment or financial 
benefit from a trade union within the 
meaning of the Trade Union and Labour 
Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 
 

Contracts Any contract which is made between the 
relevant person (or a body in which the 
relevant person has a beneficial interest) 
and the relevant authority— 
(a) under which goods or services are to 
be provided or works are to be executed; 
and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged. 
 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is 
within the area of the relevant authority. 
 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) 
to occupy land in the area of the relevant 
authority for a month or longer. 
 



Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to M’s knowledge)— 
(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; 
and 
(b) the tenant is a body in which the 
relevant person has a beneficial interest. 
 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a 
body where— 
(a) that body (to M’s knowledge) has a 
place of business or land in the area of 
the relevant authority; and 
(b) either— 
 
(i) the total nominal value of the 
securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body; or 
 
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of 
more than one class, the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class in 
which the relevant person has a 
beneficial interest exceeds one 
hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that class. 

 
 

These descriptions on interests are subject to the following definitions; 

 

“the Act” means the Localism Act 2011; 

“body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest” means a firm in which the 
relevant person is a partner or a body corporate of which the relevant person is a 
director, or in the securities of which the relevant person has a beneficial interest; 

“director” includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and 
provident society; 

“land” excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does not 
carry with it a right for the relevant person (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the 
land or to receive income; 

“M” means a member of a relevant authority; 

“member” includes a co-opted member; 

“relevant authority” means the authority of which M is a member; 

“relevant period” means the period of 12 months ending with the day on which M gives a 
notification for the purposes of section 30(1) or section 31(7), as the case may be, of the 
Act; 

“relevant person” means M or any other person referred to in section 30(3)(b) of the Act; 

“securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a 
collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets 
Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with a 
building society. 

 
 



2 Register of interests 
Any interests notified to the Monitoring Officer will be included in the register of interests. 
A copy of the register will be available for public inspection and will be published on the 
authority’s website. 
 
3 Sensitive interests 
Where you consider that disclosure of the details of a disclosable pecuniary interest could 
lead to you, or a person connected with you, being subject to violence or intimidation, and 
the Monitoring Officer agrees, if the interest is entered on the register, copies of the register 
that are made available for inspection and any published version of the register will exclude 
details of the interest, but may state that you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, the 
details of which are withheld under Section 32(2). 
 
4 Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest 
A)   If you are present at a meeting of the authority, or any committee, sub-committee, joint 
committee or joint sub-committee of the authority, and you have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest in any matter to be considered or being considered at the meeting, 

1. You may not participate in any discussion of the matter at the meeting. 
2. You may not participate in any vote taken on the matter at the meeting. 
3. If the interest is not registered, you must disclose the interest to the meeting. 
4. If the interest is not registered and is not the subject of a pending notification, 

you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 days. 
 

 Note: In addition, Standing Orders require you to leave the room where the meeting is held 
while any discussion or voting takes place. 
 
B)   Where an executive member may discharge a function alone and becomes aware of a 
disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter being dealt with or to be dealt with by her/him, the 
executive member must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any 
steps or further steps in the matter. 
 
5 Dispensations 
The authority may grant you a dispensation, but only in limited circumstances, to enable you 
to participate and vote on a matter in which you have a disclosable pecuniary interest. 
 
6 Offences 
It is a criminal offence to 

 Fail to notify the Monitoring Officer of any disclosable pecuniary interest within 28 
days of election 

 Fail to disclose a disclosable pecuniary interest at a meeting if it is not on the register 

 Fail to notify the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of a disclosable pecuniary interest 
that is not on the register that you have disclosed to a meeting 

 Participate in any discussion or vote on a matter in which you have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest 

 As an executive member discharging a function acting alone, and having a 
disclosable pecuniary interest in such a matter, failing to notify the Monitoring Officer 
within 28 days of the interest. 

 Knowingly or recklessly providing information that is false or misleading in notifying 
the Monitoring Officer of a disclosable pecuniary interest or in disclosing such interest 
to a meeting 
 

The criminal penalties available to a court are to impose a fine not exceeding level 5 on the 
standard scale and disqualification from being a councillor for up to 5 years. 

 


	Agenda
	1 Procedure for the Hearing Sub-Committee
	2 To consider the Monitoring Officer's investigation report
	Investigation Report - Addendum
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5
	Appendix 6
	Appendix 7
	Appendix 8


